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INTERVIEW I 

DATE: October 7, 1981 

INTERVIEWEE: VERNON R. ALDEN 

INTERVIEWER: Michael I.. Gillette 

PLACE: 	 Dr. Alden's office, Boston, Massachusetts 

Tape 	1 of 1 

G: 	 Let's start with your own background and what led up to your being 

tapped to work with the Job Corps program. 

A: 	 All right. As an undergraduate I had gone to Brown University. 

After World War 11--1 was in the Navy during the war--I went to 

the Harvard Business School and then worked there for twelve 

years. In January of 1962 I became president of Ohio University. 

Because my wife and I were relatively young--I was thirty-eight 

at the time--and we had come from John Kennedy country in 

Massachusetts, we received a lot of press coverage. We were 

doing unusual things in the conservative State of Ohio. When 

I arrived in Ohio, I discovered that Ohio State University was 

banning speakers from their campus, people with communist or 

socialist backgrounds or very liberal points of view. Early on 

in my administration I publicly stated that our campus was open 

to speakers, which I considered essential at a first-rate academic 

institution. And we were launching unusual programs, such as 

involvement with the concerns of Appalachia. Ohio University is 

located in southeastern Ohio, in one of the twenty-eight depressed 

counties that comprise Appalachian Ohio. As a result, we received 

national newspaper and magazine publicity. Time magazine ran a-
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feature article, The Wall Street Journal had a long side column, 

and 	 Life magazine devoted about twenty pages to a young president 

trying to turn a campus around. 

Along the way I got acquainted with Sargent Shriver, because 

we were the first college to grant academic credit for Peace Corps 

service. Sargent Shriver took a good deal of interest in our 

university and in me in particular. 

G: 	 Excuse me. Did you initiate the Peace Corps credit program, or 

were you approached by the Peace Corps to do it? 

A: 	 No, we initiated it. I had brought several very young people to 

serve as interns in my office, men and women just out of Ivy 

League or West Coast colleges. I wanted to make our rather large 

state university really different. I thought that too many large 

state universities were moving young people through in lock-step 

progression, piling up credit hours but not really providing an 

innovative curriculum or experiences that were unique. I was able 

to place the young men and women attracted to our administration 

in various offices on the campus. Some of them had been Peace 

Corps volunteers. As I met regularly with this young team, they 

came up with several interesting ideas. We were the first Ohio 

college, private or public, that recruited in predominately black 

high schools, for example. We had in the early sixties a much 

larger black population on our campus than Ohio State, although 

they were three times our size. I credit one of the young people 

in our group with the idea of giving laboratory credit for Peace 

Corps service. I think that may be what initially brought us to 
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Sargent Shriver's attention. 

When I was at Harvard Business School, I helped to start an 

organization called the Young President's Organization. Members 

were company presidents who had arrived at their positions before 

the age of forty in companies that had annual sales of two million 

dollars or more. I was invi ted by YPO in the winter of 1964 to 

Hawaii to speak at their annual convention. It seemed like a 

marvelous quasi-vacation, because I had been going at my job 

eighteen hours a day, seven days a week. I looked forward to 

giving my speech and relaxing on Waikiki Beach for four or five 

days. I had given my speech and had been on the beach no mo re 

than half an hour when I was paged for a call from the White 

House. I picked up the phone and, after a long wait, President 

Johnson came on with an invitation to fly immediately to 

Washington. Then he said, "I'd like to have Mr. Shriver explain 

what this is all about." Sargent Shriver said, "We want to talk 

to you about being part of an exciting new program we're 

developing." I replied, "Well, yes, I can be in Washington next 

week sometime." Shriver said, "What do you mean next week? We 

expect you tomorrow." I said, "I had planned to stay here a 

little bit longer." He said, "No, you've got to come right away. 

After all, it's the President of the United States inviting you." 

So I got on a plane and flew all the way back to Washington 

and then sat around a day and a half waiting to be seen by Lyndon 

Johnson and Sargent Shriver. They said they wanted me to drop 

everything at the university immediately and come to Washington 
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to chair the task force planning the Job Corps portion of the War 

on Poverty. I responded, -Look, I've been at this university only 

two years, and we have a number of very substantial programs just 

beginning. I just can't run out on people.- Shriver said, -Well, 

maybe you can be part of the task force for a period of time and 

then you'll be able to leave and join us full time." I replied, 

-That's not possible. I really doubt whether I can take any time 

at all, even spending a day or two a week in Washington." 

Sargent Shriver then flew down to Florida and talked to the 

chairman of the Ohio board, who was John (Wilmer) Galbreath, not 

the John (Kenneth) Galbraith from Harvard. John owned a very 

large development and construction firm in Columbus, Ohio, but 

was better known as the owner of the Pittsburgh Pirates and three 

Kentucky Derby winning horses. A very fine gentleman, he is in 

his eighties now, but in those days he was in his late sixties. 

At Galbreath's winter place in Florida, Shriver told him that it 

would be important to the university that I chair the task force. 

John Galbreath called me and said, "You know, r think this will be 

difficult for the Board of Trustees and for the people of Ohio to 

accept, being as conservative as they are. But if you feel that 

you really want to do it and should do it, r think the board would 

okay your going there for maybe a couple of days a week for the 

next three months or so.- He went on to say, "r gather from what 

you said to Shriver that there's no way that you'd leave the 

university to take on the full-time responsibility as head of the 

Job Corps.- r said, -That's true. r will make whatever inputs r 
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can to the task force and I will do those things that Mr. Shriver 

described to me, but obviously I am not going to be a candidate 

for the directorship of the Job Corps.-

So with that I began to commute to Washington. The 

university had several airplanes that I had persuaded corporations 

to give us. We had two Beechcraft, a couple of DC-3s, and several 

smaller planes as part of our aviation program. We offered non-

credit navigation and pilot training programs that students in 

business administration or engineering could take. At the same 

time the planes were very useful to our administration, because we 

were able to move around fairly freely with support from research 

contracts and grants from various corporations. So I flew to 

Washington a couple of days a week for a period of about three 

months. I would get up about five in the morning, fly to 

Washington, work all day long, talk with Shriver until well in the 

evening, and then work all the next day before flying back to Ohio 

late at night. 

I would guess that the reason Sargent Shriver asked me to 

become involved was that I had gone to the Harvard Business School 

and had worked there on the faculty and in the administration for 

twelve years. I also served on some corporate boards and knew the 

business community very well while being a member of the academic 

community. He apparently wanted somebody who was comfortable in 

both worlds, because the Job Corps looked to him to be a 

combination of the practicality of business with the research and 

teaching inputs that the academic world could give. 
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I did not get too deeply into the detailed planning of the 

Job Corps camps or the logistical work that had to be done with 

the Departments of Defense or Labor. Bob McNamara and Pat 

Moynihan were both friends of mine from Harvard days, so in the 

ini tial meetings I took our small team over to talk with them. 

But then John Carley or Wade Robinson or other members would carry 

on the day-to-day detail work with their staffs. I perceived my 

role, and I assumed that Sargent Shriver agreed, as an outreach to 

the business and academic communities. I also knew several 

leading sports figures who could help us make the Job Corps camps 

attractive to young people. I spent some time running around the 

country talking to business leaders, to academics, to the press, 

inviting them to share their ideas with the Task Force. You 

mentioned an article that Fred Hechinger had written; Fred had 

been a long-time friend of mine. When he wrote that piece in 

The New York Times, it was very helpful because we got a flood of 

letters from academic people and business leaders who began to 

take an interest in the War on Poverty. 

Many Republican-oriented businessmen were skeptical of the 

War on Poverty. I visited several business leaders, trying to 

explain that the Job Corps was practical, businesslike, and 

focused on the problem of poverty. I shall never forget my 

interview with Neil McElroy, the Chairman of Procter and Gamble. 

Because he was a graduate of Harvard and the Harvard Business 

School, I thought that he would be one of the more understanding 

and liberal businessmen. I was wrong. I argued, wOo you have any 
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idea how much money we're spending on kids who have dropped out of 

school, have gotten into lives of crime, and are now locked up in 

prisons or detention homes? We are spending millions, even 

billions of dollars on these lost kids. What if we had a program 

that would take unemployable youngsters out of predominantly black 

neighborhoods, or hollows of Appalachia, and fi rst of all bring 

them up to a decent condition of health. Then give them some 

basic skills, so that they could at least read and write and learn 

how to use a telephone or cash a check--just those elementary 

skills that we take for granted. Now, what if we were able to 

take these kids out of their dead-end environments, and as Lyndon 

Johnson said, no longer give them a 'handout' but give them a 

'hand-up?' What if a million of them could be made employable, 

find jobs, and have spending money? How much more Crest 

toothpaste could you sell? It's a very practical problem. We 

plan to take these lost youngsters off welfare, out of detention 

homes, out of dead-end situations, and make them employable.-

McElroy's response was, "Well, I've heard from President 

Eisenhower and others that this is a boondoggle, so that's good 

enough for me." 

But, happily enough, there were several businessmen who took 

an interest; and, as you probably know, we set up an advisory 

board of business leaders. Have you seen the roster of them? 

G: 	 Yes. 

A: 	 I helped Mr. Shriver put together that list, and we invited them 

to meet with us from time to time in Washington. They served as 
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an advisory group, but more importantly they were emissaries to 

the rest of the business community. 

When we began to talk about where the Job Corps camps should 

be located and who should run them, we discovered early on that 

academic people wanted to use them as research laboratories. They 

were looking for grants from us, so they could study these kids 

like specimens. We were disappointed that few academics had 

practical ideas for meeting our goal: making unemployable young 

people healthy, skilled, and useful to society. So we decided 

that several Job Corps camps would be run by business 

corporations. There was a business recession in 1964 and in 

many companies there were sophisticated Ph.D.s who really didn't 

have an awful lot to do or were about to be laid off. It occurred 

to me that running a Job Corps program could be attractive to 

Xerox, Litton, CBS, or other companies. Looking at the record, 

some 	of the best Job Corps camps were run by goal-oriented, well-

organized business corporations. 

Maybe I should stop and see whether you wanted to ask--

G: 	 Well, there are a couple of things. First, that meeting that you 

had with President Johnson, is that right, when you came back from 

Hawaii, do you recall what President Johnson said to you at that 

meeting and the circumstances of the meeting? 

A: 	 It was not a long meeting. It was in the so-called Fish Bowl 

Room. With the President were Mr. Shriver and a black man. I've 

forgotten his name, but I don't think he ever became a member of 

the task force. He probably was a visitor whom the President was 
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trying to impress with his plans for the War on Poverty. 

President Johnson reminisced about his youth, his teaching 

experiences, and his very early concern for poor people. He said 

that he had been dirt-poor himself; that he had always wanted to 

do something for poor folks. He went on to say that he had talked 

with Sargent Shriver about a program that would eradicate poverty 

in our lifetime. He described various elements of it--Community 

Action, the VISTA volunteers, and a job-oriented program that 

would be modeled after the CCC camps--only they would be better. 

He spoke in generalities. It was a brief meeting, and then I went 

off with Sargent Shriver to the first building we occupied. In 

less than two months we must have been headquartered in four 

different borrowed buildings. I've forgotten which one it was, 

but it was where Shriver had his office. 

G: The Peace Corps Building, wasn't it? 

A: Yes. We talked some more and I said, "I really have to think this 

through. It's very important that I discuss this with our board." 

It was then that Sargent Shriver said, "I'd like to talk to the 

chairman of your board," and he went ahead and did it. 

G: This was before he talked to Mr. Galbreath? 

A: Right. 

G: I see. 

A: Since John Galbreath was a dyed-in-the-wool Republican, I did not 

expect him to be terribly excited about a Lyndon Johnson-sponsored 

program. But Shriver, as you know, does a superb job of relating 

to conservative businessmen as well as liberal Democrats. 
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G: Did President Johnson talk about his days as an NYA director and 

running that? 

A: Yes. 

G: Did he relate it to Job Corps at all? 

A: Yes, he did. I can't remember the details of the conversation, 

but I remember he mentioned that. 

G: Do you recall the date of that meeting with the President or the 

date of your speech in Hawaii, or anything that would--? 

A: My speech in Hawaii was in February of 1964. I've forgotten the 

exact date of my February meeting with the President and Sargent 

Shriver. My appointment as Chairman of the Task Force was 

March 25, 1964. 

G: Now let me ask you also about your teaching experience at Harvard, 

at the Businenss School. What was your specialty there? 

A: I was the full-time Associate Dean of the Harvard Business School, 

involved in internal as well as external administration. I was 

responsible for our academic budget, for fund-raising, for 

recruitment of faculty, and so on. Most of my teaching was done 

in the summertime in the Business Policy area, or in a course 

called -Business Responsibilities.- For example, I taught for a 

couple of summers in the Advanced Management Program in Hawaii. 

Then I taught for two summers in Japan. The president of Keio 

University had asked us about the possibility of establishing a 

graduate business school at Keio. As a first step, we conducted 

a three-week summer program for Japanese business leaders. Then 

we invited several Keio faculty members to the Harvard Business 
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School for periods of about eighteen months to teach them to write 

and to lead business cases. 

G: 	 Had you had any expertise in manpower programs at all, manpower 

training? 

A: 	 No. I had a keen interest in the problem of poverty, because I 

had read Michael Harrington's book [The Other America] even 

before I met Sargent Shriver. One of the main reasons I accepted 

the Ohio Universi ty invi tation was the challenge of the 

environment there. On my first visit to meet the Trustees, I was 

struck by the beauty of the place. It looked like an Ivy League 

institution, tucked away in those rolling Appalachian hills. But 

just outside of town were abandoned coal mines and poverty shacks, 

with no decent highway access, no good airports nearby. Having 

been on the boards of a couple of companies that were part of the 

development of Massachusetts' high technology highway, Route 128, 

I thought, wouldn't it be exciting to take a medium-sized state 

uni versi ty (we had about 8599 .students then and I knew that in 

that decade we would have to double our size) and make it a pace-

setter for state universities? Wouldn't it be great if we could 

turn the area around economically? We were ravaged by annual 

floods that isolated the campus. There were no challenging jobs 

for youngsters in Southeastern Ohio, causing an out-migration of 

young talent to Cleveland, to the East Coast, or to other parts of 

the country. The challenge for me was to see whether we could 

create a different kind of university--and whether that university 

could have a positive impact upon the region. 
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So one of the selfish interests I had for being involved with 

the War on Poverty was that I could have access to people who were 

developing the Appalachian program. Later I became chairman of 

the Educational Commission of Appalachia. And our University 

benefitted from funds earmarked for area development. For 

example, we were able to reroute and harness the river that had 

annually flooded, ravaging the University and the community. 

We persuaded our Governor, who was Republican, to become 

involved in the Appalachian program. He had been outspokenly 

opposed. I pleaded with Governor Rhodes that he would deprive our 

depressed twenty-eight counties of Significant funds if he didn't 

join the program. President Johnson needed to have one more 

conservative governor on board. With three-days lead time, we 

planned a meeting in our university ballroom of community leaders, 

mayors, and business leaders. Four hundred and thirty-two people 

showed up at the meeting. When Governor Rhodes saw that all these 

ci ti zens in Southeastern Ohio wanted to go into the program, he 

said, -Well, now, how can we get hold of the President and tell 

him that we'll be on board?- I put a call in to the White House 

to Jack Valenti, whom I had known at Harvard Business School, and 

I said the Governor wanted to speak to President Johnson. Valenti 

said, -He's now in a helicopter on his way to Andrews Air Force 

Base, but what sort of message did you want me to pass on to him?-

Governor Rhodes told Jack that Ohio would come into the program, 

giving the President the conservative state needed to ensure 

passage of the Appalachian Act. 



LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh

13. 


As a result, we were able to begin work on the Appalachian 

Highway, improving access to our part of the state and benefitting 

the university enormously. We got the flood control project I 

mentioned a moment ago. When the War on Poverty was funded, we 

received a large grant from the VISTA program. We established a 

VISTA volunteer training center within our school of business 

administration. Sargent Shriver came out to give a speech in 

nearby Marietta, Ohio. Since I was speaking in another part of 

the country, my wife went over to Marietta with the dean of the 

school of business to accept the grant--I've forgotten how much it 

was, $ 5 8 0 , 0 0 0  or something like that--to develop a Community 

Action Program within our university. This enabled our students 

to have real-life experiences in community action. Even as under-

graduates, they could be volunteers, helping to teach deprived 

youngsters, helping poor people in the area, and receive academic 

credit for it. Appalachia was a Wliving laboratoryW for our 

students and teachers. For many years, I had been convinced that 

the university world was too isolated from the real world. Young 

people could go to a university like ours located in the middle of 

poverty, right in the middle of Appalachia, and not know what it 

was like. The Community Action grant gave them an opportunity to 

see and to work in an environment that many of them believed did 

not exist. This was another innovative program that made our 

university distinctive in the mid-Sixties. 

We were celebrating the one hundred and sixtieth anniversary 

of Ohio University in 1964, and I wanted to do something unusual 
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to underscore the significance of that anniversary. So I called 

up Bill Moyers and asked, "What are the chances of getting the 

President to come out here?" Bill replied, "We've had it in the 

back of [our minds). We're planning a trip to the Appalachian 

area, and maybe we can key it into visiting Ohio University. How 

much lead time would you need?" I said, "Well, less than you do." 

So he called me up one Sunday morning, very, very early and said 

that he was coming out the next day to Lockbourne Air Force base 

near Columbus and would come on down with some Secret Service 

people to look over the campus with the expectation that the 

President would be there on Thursday. The President did come to 

the campus in May and announced the Great Society Program, 

although the University of Michigan claims to have been the place 

where the program was first announced. 

Well, I didn't come away from all this completely unscarred. 

I don't know whether Sarge told you that one of our Ohio 

Congressmen accused me of improper lobbying. The Columbus 

Citizen-Journal and [the Columbus] Dispatch carried huge front-

page articles quoting Congressman Abele to the effect that I had 

twisted his arm trying to get him to vote for the War on Poverty. 

He claimed that what I did was unethical and illegal and that the 

trustees ought to fire me for mixing up my university 

responsibilities with lobbying activity. I responded by calling 

my own press conference: ·Well, yes, I did talk to Congressman 

[Homer "Pete") Abele, but I don't think what I did was improper." 

I said that I was speaking for the citizens in our part of the 
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state when I asked him to support the President's program. I 

enumerated about a dozen programs that would have benefitted our 

part of the state which Abele had voted against. W I don't want 

you, Pete, to vote once more against a bill that would really help 

the people in our part of Ohio. w The papers in Ohio gave my 

statements full play. Congressman Abele ran for re-election the 

following year and was soundly trashed by his Democratic opponent. 

G: Well, let's talk a little bit about the task force itself. Who 

was working on the task force, or the Job Corps component of the 

task force when you arrived? 

A: There was a young Army colonel named John Carley, who was in and 

out of the office on loan from Bob McNamara. When I first 

arrived, there were only Adam Yarmolinsky and Sargent Shriver, 

and another fellow who was, I think, a legislative liaison for 

the Peace Corps. 

G: Wilson McCarthy? 

A: Yes, Wilson McCarthy. Initially, they were the only people 

around. We borrowed people from other agencies, from the Labor 

Department and the Defense Department primarily. John Carley 

became the chief of staff of our Job Corps activity; he was the 

person who went out begging and borrowing people, equipment, and 

space. He put together a group of people who wrote position 

papers and did the major planning for the Job Corps. 

G: Was the War on Poverty task force divided into subgroups, or did 

you ever meet as a group as a whole and discuss all facets of the 

War on Poverty, Community Action, VISTA, et cetera, or did you 
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focus 	exclusively on the subject of Job Corps? 

A: 	 In the first two or three weeks, Glenn Olds came on board from 

Springfield College to chair the VISTA volunteer program, and 

labor leader Jack Conway headed the Community Action Program. 

Almost every day during those first two or three weeks Adam 

Yarmolinsky, Sargent Shriver, Glenn Olds, Jack Conway, and I 

would meet and talk about general strategy for the whole program. 

Since I was in Washington only one or two days a week, John Carley 

actually directed the staff, developed the position papers, and 

assigned people certain tasks. I assume that John continued to 

meet with the staff people involved with VISTA and the Community 

Action Program. I was involved in very little of the detailed 

planning for the Job Corps program. I spent most of my time 

trying to open doors for Carley and others. For example, we 

called on Don Hornig, who was then the President's Science 

Adviser. I had known Don when he was a professor at Harvard. 

John Carley and the staff drew on Hornig's staff for information 

and assistance. I also put the staff in communication with Bob 

McNamara and Pat Moynihan. 

G: 	 What was the Labor Department's position in the War on Poverty 

task force? 

A: 	 I wish I could remember the issues that concerned us the most. 

I recall that we were concerned that the Labor Department would 

try to co-opt the program, or that Defense would take it over--

giving the Job Corps an unfortunate military personality. 

Are you going to talk to John Carley? 
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G: Sure. 

A: Can you find him? 

G: We' l l  see .  

A: Yes. 

G: Willard Wirtz, did he, for example, want to run the Job Corps 

program? 

A: I don't know. 

G: You never met with Wirtz? 

A: No. 

G: How about any representatives of the Labor Department: Pat 

Moynihan or Eric Tolmach or Samuel Merrick? 

A: The only person I met with in the Labor Department was Pat 

Moynihan, and at the time we met I did not get the impression 

that Pat was trying to take over the program. We needed to 

borrow people; we needed to live off other people's funds. 

Because we would have no budget unless a bill was passed by 

Congress, I arranged the meetings to seek money and people. 

So the interdepartmental struggles that I heard about, I did 

not witness firsthand. 

G: What was Moynihan's contribution to the task force, do you 

recall? 

A: He philosophically was well versed on the problems of poverty. 

One of the issues that he and I talked about was whether labor 

unions would be cooperative. We were afraid that with restrictive 

entry into certain trades, union rules would prevent entry of Job 

Corps graduates. It would be like a closed shop to them. So we 
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talked a bit about that, and I think Moynihan recognized that as a 

problem, but • • • 

G: Sure. Was there any feeling that the employment service was not 

suitable for recruiting Job Corps enrollees? 

A: I don't know. 

G: You don't recall any discussion on this? 

A: No. 

G: Was there a feeling that the existing Cabinet departments were not 

focusing on the poor? 

A: I'm sure that Sargent Shriver and Adam Yarmolinsky felt that in 

order to have a successful program there had to be a new agency 

with the "gung ho" spirit that the Peace Corps had. In some of 

our conversations we talked about how stodgy and bureaucratic 

some agencies were. Maybe the Defense Department or the Labor 

Department could have a piece of the action, but what we needed 

was a whole new thrust if the War on Poverty were to be won. 

G: Do you know how the task force arrived at having two manpower 

programs, or job training programs I should say, one the Job 

Corps and the other the Neighborhood Youth Corps that was 

delegated to the Labor Department? 

A: I don't know how that came about,but early on we talked about 

the need for rural camps where kids would have an opportunity to 

get out of cities and into an environment that was different--a 

more healthful environment away from their families and away 

from their gangs. We also thought that we could deal with larger 

numbers of youngsters in rural areas. I suppose--and this all 
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took place after I was no longer a member of the task force--

that once the camps got going there was the practical problem of 

needing job training centers right within the city neighborhoods. 

But how the division of responsibility developed, I don't know. 

G: Initially there seems to have been an emphasis on the fact that so 

many youths, particularly minority youth and improverished youth, 

were being rejected by the draft as either physically or mentally 

unfit. Do you think this was, in part, a factor that contributed 

to the creation of the Job Corps, to improve the mental and 

physical health of these [youths1? 

A: I remember Bob McNamara talking about how appalled he was at the 

number of youngsters who had to be rejected for physical. reasons 

or because they couldn't pass the basic aptitude test. Although 

we couldn't talk about it publicly and explicitly, we did agree 

that the Job Corps would create an opportunity to upgrade people 

so that they could qualify for military service. 

G: Well, now, initially the military was going to playa much larger 

role, I think. 

A: Yes. Right. 

G: They were going to help with the training, the logistical support 

and all of this, and that approach was shot down; it was skotched. 

Do you know what happened to it, how it was rejected? 

A: Have you asked Shriver that? Because my recollection was that 

Sargent Shriver felt that it might kill the public relations of 

the program if we were tied too closely to the military. 

G: Well, there was some opposition. 
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A: Yes, yes. But that's an area that he and Adam probably discussed 

at great length with McNamara, and I was not really a part of it. 

G: The Labor Department had its own youth labor program in the 

hopper, I understand. They called it the Youth Opportunity Bill 

or something like that. 

A: Yes. 

G: Do you recall the relationship between this and the Job Corps 

proposal? 

A: I can't remember. Was the Labor Department program superseded 

then by the Job Corps, [put] on the back burner? 

G: My impression is that originally it was, but then they later had a 

very abridged version of it. 

A: Yes. But I don't remember the details. 

G: Another proposal that was considered by the task force was a 

massive jobs program. Do you recall that? 

A: You mean of the CCC type, where they do road building or timber 

cutting? 

G: Actually, I think it was more of a manpower training, but a 

massive program that would generate training and jobs on a much 

larger scale rather than having Community Action and VISTA and all 

these other--

A: When did this come up? I don't remember. 

G: I think it was in the early stages, and there was some talk that 

it should be funded by a tax on cigarettes. Do you recall [that]? 

A: No, I don't. 

G: Did the Whi te House have any input on the del iberations of the 
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task 	force that you recall? 

A: 	 During the time I was on the task force I saw President Johnson 

only four times. The liaison with the President was handled by 

Sargent Shriver. So I don't know what conversations took place 

between the President or other people in the White House and 

Sargent Shriver. The only times I saw the President were, once, 

when he initially talked to me briefly about serving. Secondly, 

one time Jerry Ford, Representative Ford, attacked the Job Corps 

on the floor of the House, calling it a boondoggle and a waste of 

money. Sargent Shriver was told about it by Wilson McCarthy. 

happened to be in Sarge's office at the time, so he grabbed me and 

said he was going over to the Whi te House right away to talk to 

the President. We were ushered into the President's Office, and 

Sarge was hopping mad about Gerald Ford's attack. That's when 

the famous statement was made: "Don't worry about Gerald Ford 

because he can't fart and chew gum at the same time." Whether 

the President said it on other occasions, it was polished up and 

reported as: wGerald Ford can't walk and chew gum at the same 

time.- Maybe the President said it again in a different context, 

but I was in the office when he said that, trying to calm down 

Shriver. Sarge felt that Ford's speaking out against the program 

could be a mortal blow in those early stages. 

I 
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The other time 1 saw the President was when my wife and 1 

were invited to a White House dinner. Lady Bird went up to bed 

about midnight while President Johnson stayed on and danced until 

about three-thirty. I was so fascinated by the evening that my 

wife and 1 stayed on until the President left. 1 heard that he 

went directly to the airport and on to Dallas. 1 was amazed at 

the tremendous energy of the guy, being able to dance most of the 

night and then get on a plane and arrive for another active day in 

Texas the next morning. The last time I saw him was on our campus 

when I introduced him by mentioning three major educational 

initiatives launched by the Federal Government. One was the 

Morrill Act, the land-grant college bill which provided practical 

educational opportunities. A second was the G1 Bill opening up 

access to higher education to a wide range of young people. I 

predicted that the Great Society programs would be the third great 

watershed development, one that would provide opportunities for 

thousands of youngsters who had been deprived from secondary and 

higher education because of poverty. I had an opportunity to 

visit with the President after his speech, but those four 

occasions were the only times 1 actually saw the President. The 

rest of the time the liaison was carried on between Mr. Shriver--

G: 	 Who carried out the liaison at the White House? I mean, which 

staff member do you recall dealing with the most? 

A: 	 Well, I don't know whether Wilson McCarthy did that or whether he 

worked primarily with Congress. But clearly he was a key person, 

because he knew the President so well. Adam Yarmolinsky appeared 
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to be shy and very low key, but I know that he had his contacts in 

the White House as well and was very effective. 

G: Was Bill Moyers active in--? 

A: With Shriver he was. Bill Moyers was on the phone quite often 

with Sargent Shriver. I knew Bill, but I did not interact with 

him when I was on the task force. 

G: Do you recall how the name, the Job Corps, evolved? 

A: I don't. Have you asked Sarge that? 

G: Yes. 

Let's see. Do you have any insights on the other programs, 

Community Action Program? Did you sit in on any important 

meetings in which those programs were thrashed out, Community 

Action, say? 

A: Only in the very first days before really they took shape. 

G: VISTA, do you recall any of the--? 

A: Glenn Olds, who was president of Springfield College, and Jack 

Conway and I gave speeches in various parts of the country, trying 

to gather support for the programs. We talked and wrote articles 

about the concept of the War on Poverty, the theory behind the 

VISTA volunteers, Community Action Program, or the Job Corps. As 

the task force developed specific plans, we were able to provide 

more details in our presentations. Glenn Olds and I had returned 

to our institutions before the bill was actually passed. 

G: Was there discussion on what kids the Job Corps was trying to 

reach, the kids, for example, who were really at the bottom of the 

scale in terms of motivation and employability on the one hand, or 
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kids who stood a reasonably good chance of making a success of 

themselves. 

A: We were concerned that the public would think that this was a 

program only for black kids, for ghetto kids. So we emphasized in 

all our speeches that there were hundreds of thousands of young 

people trapped in the hollows of Appalachia or in other rural 

areas, and that this was not just a black program; it was a white 

and black problem. We were afraid also that the public would 

believe that the Job Corps was designed primarily for youngsters 

with prison records, with juvenile delinquents or drug pushers. 

We planned to take kids with poor records, but they were not going 

to be the only ones in the program. 

We also talked about the poor health of kids. We discovered 

that many were going to need an awful lot of remedial work on 

their teeth, for example. We talked about the number of young 

people' in high schools who could not read at grade school level. 

We invited representatives of publishing firms to discuss the 

teaching tools that would be needed. 

I hope that you will talk with some of the alumni of Job 

Corps programs. There is a young fellow who now works for The 

Mead Corporation in Atlanta, a very attractive black men who as a 

teenager was placed in a detention home because of petty thievery. 

Fortunately, he was placed in the Camp Kilmer Job Corps program. 

There they discovered he had talent as a boxer. With help from 

supervisors in the camp, he became a Golden Gloves champion in the 

state of New Jersey. When he left the Job Corps, he earned his 
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high school diploma and went on to college. He eventually got a 

job with Mead, and now he's a fairly senior executive with the 

Atlanta Packaging Division. 

It would be interesting to find out how many similar success 

stories there are. 

G: Now, how were the conservation projects added, do you recall? 

A: They were part of our very early discussions. We read a lot of 

material on the CCC and their useful projects such as cleaning up 

the country and improving the national parks, et cetera. Not 

knowing much about the CCC, I was impressed with what the program 

had accomplished. I felt that taking kids out of Harlem, Watts or 

the Hough district of Cleveland and into a national park or the 

wide open spaces of the U.S. would be a very good element of the 

program. The conservation corps aspect was included from the very 

beginning of our discussions. 

G: There's some suggestion that there was a compromise made with the 

conservation lobby in Congress, Congressman [John] Saylor and 

others, to stipulate that 40 per cent of the enrollees be sent to 

conservation camps. Do you recall that? 

A: Yes, I remember. I did not take part in those discussions, but I 

heard about them. A.t the time I wondered what the fuss was all 

about, because the conservation aspect of the program was going to 

be an important element all along. I didn't see any reason why 

there had to be bargaining sessions over the proportion of the 

program that would be devoted to conservation. 

G: Do you recall how Phillip Landrum became the sponsor of the 



Economic Opportunity Act? 

A: I don't. 

G: Initially the Job Corps seems to have been exclusively for men. 

Do you recall that when the--? 

A: Yes, and Edith Green played an important role. 

G: Do you recall how that decision was made to include women? 

A: I can't remember how often we met with Edith Green, but I know 

that Sargent Shriver and I met with her and with Jeanne Noble. 

r learned a lot from Jeanne Noble about the problems of black 

young women, and I became convinced that it was awfully important 

to have a Job Corps program for women. I give Edith Green credit 

for having pushed as hard as she did. She told us that if we were 

to have her support there had to be a program for women. 

G: Yes. She was rather adamant about that point, wasn't she? 

A: Yes, indeed. 

G: There was also some addition that she made, I think, requiring 

certification by a local school board before a drop-out could be 

enrolled in the Job Corps, here addressing the fear that the Job 

Corps would attract students away from school. 

A: Yes. Because Edith Green was one of the great supporters of 

education budgets, she did not want to do anything to harm the 

educational system. There certainly was justification for her 

raising that question. 

G: Yes. Now, did criticism regarding the cost of the Job Corps per--

A: Yes. 

G: --corpsman cause the the planners to expand the size of the 
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program beyond what could be reasonably operated and planned? 

A: Yes, there was criticism of the cost, and detractors said to us: 

·We could send a boy to Harvard for less money.- That statement 

got in the newspapers and became one of the favorite wisecracks of 

conservative Congressmen and Senators. That criticism may have 

led to expanding the size of the Job Corps camps. 

G: Yes. Did you yourself do any work on the Hill to advance the 

program? You mentioned talking to this one Congressman. 

A: Yes. I knew Wayne Hays very well, because he was from our area of 

Ohio. Wayne was on board already, and he was helpful with other 

people. I called on Bob Taft, Senator Taft from Ohio. He was 

very polite and listened to me but was noncommittal; I've 

forgotten how Bob Taft voted. I covered most of the Ohio 

delegation. I became acquainted with Senator Phil Hart of 

Michigan, who was a close friend of Sarge Shriver. We had dinner 

the night that Lyndon Johnson told Sargent Shriver that Sarge 

would not be his Vice Presidential candidate. You may recall that 

there was a lot of newspaper speculation about Johnson's second-

term Vice Presidential candidate. He had previously called in 

Bobby Kennedy to tell him that he would not be selected. Sargent 

Shriver and Phil Hart and I spent much of the evening discussing 

that topic. Phil Hart was a strong supporter of the Great 

Society, a friend of ours. 

G: There were some other members of the Ohio delegation who were on 

that House Education and Labor Committee. One was William Ayres. 

Do you remember him, Republican Congressman? 
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A: Yes. I probably telephoned him, but I can't remember his 

response. 

G: John Ashbrook also was [on it]. 

A: Yes. 

G: Did you have any--? 

A: I don't think I called on John Ashbrook. 

G: Okay. I know that you testified in behalf of Job Corps. 

A: Yes. 

G: Anything significant here about that? 

A: Who did we testify before, do you remember? 

G: Well, the House committee. 

A: Did we testify before a Senate committee? 

G: I think that there were some brief Senate hearings. Whether you 

did or not, I'm not sure. 

A: Chuck Percy had been a friend of mine for a long time: I knew him 

when he was head of Bell and Howell. He was a Republican. I 
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can't remember whether it was at a 

Chuck Percy was very supportive of 

of surprised people. They thought 

the program. 

G: 	 Sure. 

(Interruption) 

hearing on the Job Corps, but 


me and the program, which kind 


a Republican would be against 


Then 	did you see your role as primarily drawing in educators and 

people from the business community and selling the program to 

them? 

A: 	 Yes. I played the role of Mr. Outside in promoting the program 
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with the business community, with the academic community, and with 

publishers, reporters, and sports figures. When we began to lobby 

the bill, I worked a bit on the Hill. 

G: Do you think that there was a shortage of people on the task force 

working day-to-day on the actual planning of the Job Corps, the 

logistics, the nature of the training, developing the curricula, 

all of these things that had to be done before centers could be 

opened? 

A: Yes, ideally we should have had months and months of work with a 

larger number of people, but we had no money. We had to borrow 

people. If I wished to have an academic person help on 

curriculum, there was no way he could be paid. Whatever was 

done had to be on a volunteer basis. 

G: But you did spend some time working on curriculum and other 

things? 

A: Well, not really working on the curriculum, but exposing people, 

the John Carleys and the others, to experts in the field. For 

example, people came down from McGraw-Hill and other publishing 

firms. They all had a stake in the program because they wanted to 

sell materials to the Job Corps. 

G: Sure. Was there any particular industry that had experience in 

this sort of manpower training of largely unemployables? Or were 

you able to draw from any model, say, in the private sector that 

you could either draw personnel from or ideas from in terms of 

setting up your own [program]? 

A: I persuaded Roger Sonnabend, the head of Sonesta Hotels, to become 
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a member of our business advisory committee. He volunteered to 

share his experience and staff members who had trained dozens of 

cooks, waiters and cleaning people in the hotel-motel business. 

He made the point that it was a darn shame that he had to recruit 

all of his waiters and cooks from Europe, because there were not 

enough people sufficiently trained or motivated in this country to 

take those jobs in his hotels. 

G: How did the business advisory group function, do you recall? 

A: In the early stages of planning, the group was called together two 

or three times by Sargent Shriver. He always attended as well as 

his top assistants, Glenn Olds, Jack Conway, John Carley, and so 

on. We had general discussions about what we hoped to do, 

eliciting suggestions from the members. We hoped that they would 

be emissaries to the business world. 

G: Were they? Did they function as such? 

A: Yes. When I reviewed the list the other night, I was surprised at 

how many of these fellows were conservative businessmen who were 

willing to spend time with us. One fellow in particular I invited 

from the Cabot Corporation in Boston. He had been a famous full-

back at Yale, Ferd Nadherny. He became so excited about the 

program he left his Cabot job to become Sargent Shriver's right-

hand aide once the program got underway. He's now the president 

of one of the large executive search firms in Chicago, Heidrick 

and Struggles. 

G: Why didn't you become director of the Job Corps? 

A: I faced that issue from the very beginning. I said very 



LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh

31. 


explicitly to Sargent Shriver that I would not and could not take 

the job, because I had been at Ohio only two years. Because I had 

spent a lot of time running around the state giving speeches, 

raising money and trying to turn the university around, many 

people thought I had political ambitions which I didn't have. 

Had I taken a job in Washington after two years at Ohio 

Universi ty, anything that anybody had said about me would have 

been justified, that I had used the university as a stepping 

stone. I sent Sarge a letter suggesting categories of individuals 

who ought to be considered for the director position. I'll give 

you this copy of the letter, which also suggests some specific 

names. [See attached memorandum.] 

G: Did Shriver try to get you to reconsider after the legislation 

went forward? 

A: Yes. He asked me again, but I reminded him that I could not and 

would not take the job. 

Here's another memo I would like to give you. Adam 

Yarmolinsky became impatient and felt that there wasn't enough 

specific planning being done for the Job Corps. He probably was 

getting flak from Shriver, who loved to take his five briefcases 

home at night and read all the plans and proposals. I don't know 

why the secretary didn't date these memos, but here's a copy of a 

memo I wrote to Sarge in answer to Adam's concern about the status 

of planning for the Job Corps. [See attached memorandum.] 

G: Good. Would you like copies of these back? 

A! No, I have extra copies. 



LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh

32. 

G: Okay. Do you know how Otis Singletary was chosen to head the Job 

Corps? 

A: Otis at the time was president of the University of Kentucky. 

G: Yes. 

A: Otis was not on the original list of people I gave to Sarge. I 

knew Otis, but I thought it would be impossible to wrest him away 

from the University of Kentucky. I think that Sarge must have 

gotten his name from one of the Representatives or Senators from 

Kentucky. Sarge asked me about Otis, and my response was that I 

thought Otis was a fine fellow but he probably couldn't be 

persuaded to take the job. But Shriver talked him into it. 

G: Was there, do you think, a feeling on Shriver's part that the Job 

Corps director ought to be a college president? 

A: Yes. 

G: Why was this? 

A: Shriver felt all along that the program had to have prestige. 

I noticed in your notes that there was a question about ·Should 

a Ph.D. be required?· I don't think that was the issue. I think 

the issue was that Sarge wanted the program to have prestige fn 

the eyes of the public. The Job Corps was not going to be just 

another outfit where we would get a government veteran from the 

bureaucracy to run it. He wanted to have the Job Corps identified 

as an educational opportunity for people. He could have had a 

school superintendent or a school board member, but I think that 

Sarge really wanted to give the program a little bit of 

distinction by saying a university president would run it. 
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G: 	 Yes. 

A: 	 He did talk to me initially, because he thought that I had an 

outreach to business, I had some acquaintanceships in government, 

and I was a university president. I think he wanted to have a 

college president with those characteristics. Otis Singletary 

did not have the outreach to business that would have been 

desirable. But I got the impression that Sarge really felt that 

to give the program a certain amount of class and prestige he had 

to have quote, "a university president" as director. In those 

days people were much more in awe of university presidents than 

they are today. 

G: 	 Yes. Well, during the planning there seems to have been not as 

much focus on all of the Job Corps proposals that were sent in by 

the private sector, by industry. Is this the case? Did you 

anticipate all of these applications that you received from the 

private sector? 

A: 	 . Well, I was doing a lot to stimulate requests from the private 

sector. Because I had pretty much completed my work with the task 

force after two or three months, I was not around when the actual 

assignments were made. The really heavy planning took place in 

the summer of 1964, and the contracts were appraised and awarded 

during that summer. Since 

more attention wasn't paid 

G: 00 you know why vocational 

they were? 

A: I really don't. 

I was not there, I can't tell you why 

to some of those proposals. 

schools were not tapped any more than 



G: Is there anything else on your participation here in the task 

force that we haven't discussed? 
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A: 	 I haven't had an opportunity to do as much preparation for our 

interview as I would have liked. That's why I'm vague in some of 

my answers. 

G: Sure. Well, you've been extremely helpful. 

End of Tape 1 of 1 and Interview I 
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.....1. haft hJa&ll1tarta. b.tl.eta •• tbat tile Joa. Corp. lnIr- _14 ~. 
-••1••1...• "~ 

thlDkiaa ...., caMldato. 1 ...... uul4ar... 1. ValftTllty oWaJ.al.trator. 
2. 	''''''&1'',. SclaHl Adalal.cratar.
1. 	'1__ ...ian. beeatl.,.. 
4. 	A.cIaW.tr.ter••f v.lf•• 

J.auc.l0' 
5. 	People low 1a !he Cnen.ac 

J.rYlea. 

AI ,.. .., kaMr. ITof..... Iob,rt Keny a.. 1 un ~..tod at brnn 
fft 10 ~. .-.lur. fer ..11,.....1al.tr....... w. 1IIr.. ,..fteII 010••1,. 
for ,.rlod••f • to 10 cta,.. riela )12 ..11...... _tYar.ity pr••Uata, 
310 aca.l_la 4....... 450 .t_.t par...l alal.1.crac.r.. v. a.... a-
t ...1.. ~l..r.'hl..l t.for.aCl.... tlala .re., of 1142 colla" "'la1.trat.ra. 
1 118ft ,_'*' tile.. U.c. te fllMl • .....sUata CO ..... 6. Job Cor,.. I 
haft al.o talk•• ,riyac.l, with .uch ,..,1, •• Pralt ,-,,.1, Jill 'arklu, 
Pr••Uat .f Conaall, JoIm Ifill'tt. tn.Unt .f IU...i, larau7 b ....,.. 
'h.U..t .f 	Iron, r.Ua ...,It, Gl_ Old. aa4 otaara. 

Aaoaa the people 1 kaft co..ldared aDd lal.rYl.... ar. Dick I.III••D, 

PnaW..t .f .... Coll.,., Jeha '_rlt11l, Ylc. rr••Ueat .f Cona11, 

Id Craha, Chaa,Uor .f tJaa l1q.r Lake. Cell•••• til .." York, Cor•• 

14,plct, Had .f tlaa ..Cl...l ~ata.... LO••ceria. lD V.ah1qtoal ... 

Lippitt .f the .oclaLlct.... , •••,,1_ .t eM 1JD1..ralty .f .tald.... 

Jack hertlC. f .... CbaIa.,Uor .f the CtCT Coil.., .f .. Ten, rr.. 

lol1aaa, loner Pr••1d.llt of rruklt. aM llar.hall ColI......l.ola IDevl", 

Jo.toa U.l....tt,.., Jaba K_H. nua at BamI'd, Bawu4 IrtHtk•• Ylu h0Y08& 

of ltalon, 14a1lDd Gl....r, beeatt•• DlrHtft ef &be Anoclact_ .f 

_.rlca. JaId« COU•••• I »a.U Iaa,.. fonar Do.. at the 1IIIl••r.l&7 .f ... 

la,.hir" 11... Jolmloa. 'n.U.llt of 1M Gnat Laba ......l.ct••f 1Jal-

http:la1.trat.ra
http:J.auc.l0
http:nrint.aa
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".r.ttle., ,.1b l_~ .t 0..1',' , ...... y Colla••, ah_ 014.... larl 
"ltell, Wi.. 'n,''''t .f &M "'...r.te,. .f caltl.n'" (r.c ..... 
t ••• .., fnd D.Cha) .....f ...... Vu.....1a_ .f • .nan. 
'luU, I Uft .1.....1arM .lack Vllke.. ,..- h ..W._ .f tile 
1Id....lt' .f Okl..... etc, ...... tile Ma,or .f Okb... C11J. 

'm ,be ~~,f _r. !he- 11SO caDI"a'•• wbaa I k.1ICIIW ,.......111 1 
WIIW Fae_.... fer Iftl....ouW..atlaa Vada ••\tiD••, lui- '''1!!! 
ft' I!!olt ••11t,... If,.. ft ...................f _" .dIu ~le 

is lutlbltiou .f .."liar .....tlea I _ .... lUt J .. bne th_ _... _t. .u ...ttar .f fact. tIIa .... an tbat ...., .t tUa will 
lana .tt....... hl..r.'t7 A*1A1.cratora lutltatal. 

2. l!cD4uY!sl!ool !4et.tRnt!F1 

I u ...., We...11, wttb IFRp' .t prll1Cl,ab aU ........ur. 1D 
Obio ad ID tta. lI'MteI' ...tea __, ..... tlae ,.••0.1. caadUa"l 
for .tr.... of the .,. Cftp. I ..... ceuUarecilk. ta.1u_ .... b 
l ..n.a Id. po.ttt. .. luperiatlDCl..t of Scboela f.a Cleftl... "caue. 
of a ,MlTe1 ... till r.ce I•••, MartlA I.... eM ....rl.tea.s..' .f 
IclMNtla 'a AU., hall .1'... , the Priactpal .f lfelb.... Iilla School 
ill r1Ol'tel., ...U 1_, the fomer ITtutpal.. af ...radale ....b khool 
- BOW witla tllrI'J InfOI'd'. pr..r_ la , ..t1l car,U".f ... Dull ....... 
htaclpal .f Intoa ..." Ie.al. ._.f eM.. ...,le ta., .plal_
weald _ •• aen., ......w •• 101,. er ••111.... 

1. •..la••• "acetl... 

J .ft aaa'.U, .... tlmtQlk ~ b"aft I •• t •••• ScllNl .1.at di-
rectory e'PMull, tJaa e1&.... fl'. 1945 _. 1 1Ia...1.. mi.... elaa 
11.t .f 1100 ~,,''''t••f ~1.. It.t'' ill tbe 1'PO Duectory. I 
laaw ....14.... Jolt 811l.Nr••r. t.be 'ra.Uat .f the Iou.-ca.cd. 
eer,.ratl... .. ta ••r....u .f ..nard •••t .... s....1 no tNt 'ae 
Iol.rCuucl. eor,. Ina .50 a11U._ ta ..le. to aroad $250 aillt... ill 

. tU ,.a, fl.....ta ,.u.. ..~ -U '- a Snat. lii-.ehl' of 0. J.~ 
Col"p. Mt I ....t tIIIc tie wnW leave ..U.....caM.... 

4. H!tabUa••,.t Vell.....!!!St•• 

I _ft iatef'Yie1Mll "y KtlluN Ina CMe.... Cbarl1e .11&". fr_ la_ 
terk aa4 Jaot Col41Hq fl'. v•••1.. toll. "ell of tbM woaW be .elpfv.l
•• n.oarc. pera•• ~.t i ••, y'", ...14 aot b. c&D4Ua,.. ·,.r the 
D1r_tor of thl Jo" Corp•• 

... ad 1 haft talb4 a~ftt fred IhItt_ •• • ....'~l. UDIlt4l..ta. bat 1 
__••tau f~ .,. c01Iy.r.atl_ wltll 7DU that there ar. nul' plaia. far Pr.4. 

1 .ball tr, to ... an......t. to haft Dick 'a1l1'ft1l ad larl laltn fl,.
la fr. tU .... t Ceuc 10 CUt ,.. __ ... t thea ....tia. ill tbe aut ...t 
or... I really d. aot 1auJw ....ther ~ltoD ....1U..... ".14 ... latar.,taII 
is 1UY.... tbetl' pr...t ,..itt.... ...I tlabk 1011 co.l' per._cIa Vad • 
..~...... Ie .ta, .... 

http:Iou.-ca.cd
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SUJJIC1'I JO. COIPS PLAIIlIIWC 

.k. coaYU'uCi.... ritll Ad.. ,..tU'd.,. aftarMeD I ,.tiler tbat tbar. 11 
..... aHa, u.. .tAba. of ,laDllII f. tM Jolt Carpi. Ma, I ub tbr.. 
........tlaaa. 


1. 	 .u '" bow .0 ..11. a Job Corp. JWOIra at tlIe cnta,lated .ta.... 
alia,. !au ....1' Mea h'W M'.e. t1aa,.... _ aM ...... aI'_ 
tD nr car,., ,opala,lea haft aot be_ re.cW ., oar tradltloal _v-
.atloa.al -78t-. .0 ... roal1,. bow. a, tid.• palat bow Mat to duma-
tbe .ttltuda••f ~_ ....tz1IcU.. ,.rt1&l,a&8&ba•• ,......C8.... aaka 
111 o. aocl.t,.. If va .... all .f tlaa ....... awl a ·c., ... drl..• pre-
sr- .e Ihl. tiM 1 tICnIl. k ••••ly COlIC..... If 1 "1'. 1'CN. We ....t 
a&a,. fl.lltle .. c_t1mle to be .per....cal ... eru,l.,. w __11. 
eu Job Corp. PrOJr- t. aDd.".,. .. _.t ".pt &Dd etfJ•• t .M taller 
tbe .....1'_ .... ,. e1oBa. 

2. 	 j,lthoq" act aoDa,. u. bHa nal1a~le for ,1&1Ulill& .,. ba.,. loan... ~ultl 
• lIit .~..e oar tarao' popl.tlou fna _pert.... ,..,la who lane ..... 
rillS... to 10 to V.ahiqtoa at ~lr ......,.••• to talk nth u. Clu.rl,. 
.. an loan auc:la acwo aboac tlda ,.pa1atl_ wbn .,. 118ft ........,. .... 
... la__ .....l .......,.. 


J. 	 t -.altaY. tut .. are f1Irthar .1... 111 o. ,leat ,. ~~ ,.,. _,. rul1... 
I,. cU. tJae I ..,. ,.. "'11 ....... the -c_tatl.. _tilDe fe • Jet. 
Corp. tr.bailll Ceat.r" vIl1cll .. ,laa t. .... t .....e.1 .i.e.lt,. pr..l-
_aU tllt.. _la, ...k .stili ,.ta .,,1'...1......" aM a half fl'.... 
v•• lMiaHa w111 tan ... to ~ • aa.preh_.t... r.,..C o...-=-t1oul 
,1... fft eM Job '-P'. 
0.1' o~J.ct'y. !au 1.... te .....lop • prOlr- vhldl rill c....ad the r..,.ct 
.f .....tetr., of tIaouahtful IN.lae.... &ad OlMr latereated peopla. v. 
by......er)' effort to .yoleI It.,tlll the UrPTe•• 'OII CUt we are ....1ep-
'aa a .a1ckl, _crt... ,.11tf.call:r-erlaAtecI Pl'OIr-. 

£1_ villa HI' ,laut.. tiler• ..". Ma ....uhlt .fforta to ru. tlla.. 
M ..tl_l ... 	 I-"".bu...rUt c!trag.h _atba.... ,.110.&1....
•• a,,...tata )'OW w111u,.... to ..., vitla &be ••1M•• 1....1'•• eM 
lud'lII a,ort. fl'.... ... tIaa taatbook ,ult.har.. I bMr that tUH 
t.fl_tl.1 peopl. baY. Mo...'h ..... to tbe tbouiJatf.l ..,. ,.. ban 
,OIM ._at plaut.. ad ,Nparllq for eM laaclaiq.of tha ,rOle-. 

tuak. to the .,,1l1fl_t ..l_caar elfOC'ta 01 ...1&1 J. ".lIIa aU lal • 
•••OCUt.... ba.. U4 _beU.".J.l, .00II pro•• aM .....lae ......... 

http:laaclaiq.of
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oar ,1... 1ft tlle .Jolt c.l'p'. ...t ...t. 1 .at ,CN pboce.tat1c eo,1•• 
• t tile _~ _ti&la......11 .... a"..1'1111 18 a..ba•• "'k, Vall 
aUNt Jo.anal.... 'erk n... (hed hellSacar' • .,., _l,f.l ,lec. 
t_ .......y ....tt. lectioa), ... ilia 'JWl1cat- ..1-.. .7 Job 
c:u.NClala, IIynD ,.laIUHI't ..... alAl..tlf.... » wr1t_. IIJ 
..11 at 0. UIl1....tcy ... t. V.ah1.,t_ a....... cut ella.....,.,. 
aM .....iM .nlcl•• bp. r ..ebed tall.atl.1 peo,l. all INaI' tU Valt.. 
Statal UId Ianw Cl'ut_ tba tapA••loa lbat we are ,la..l.. ella Joa. Corp.
h ..woa _11. 



LBJ Presidential Library 
http://www.lbjlibrary.org

ORAL HISTORY TRANSCRIPT 
Lyndon B. Johnson Library Oral Histories [NAID 24617781]

More on LBJ Library oral histories: 
http://discoverlbj.org/exhibits/show/loh/oh

NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS ADMINISTRATION 
LYNDON BAINES JOHNSON LIBRARY 

Legal Agreement Pertaining to the Oral History Interview of Vernon R. Alden 

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 21 of Title 44, United States Code,
and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, I, Vernon R. 
Alden, of Boston, Massachusetts, do hereby give, donate and convey to the United 
States of America all my rights, title and interest in the tape recording and 
transcript of the personal interview conducted on October 7, 1981 at Boston,
Massachusetts, and prepared for deposit in the Lyndon Baines Johnson Library. 

This assignment is subject to the following terms and conditions: 

(1) The transcript shall be available for use by researchers as soon 

as it has been deposited in the Lyndon Baines Johnson Library. 


(2) The tape recording shall be available to those researchers who 

have access to the transcript. 


(3) I hereby assign to the United States Government all copyright I 

may have in the interview transcript and tape. 


(4) Copies of the transcript and the tape recording may be provided

by the Library to researchers upon request. 


(5) Copies of the transcript and tape recording may be deposited in 

or loaned to institutions other than the Lyndon Baines Johnson Library. 
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